General Store and Soft Drink Manufacturers (Hemleys), 6001 Donald-Stawell Road, CALLAWADDA



CA 02 - Shire of Northern Grampians - Stage 2 Heritage Study, 2004

Location

6001 Donald-Stawell Road CALLAWADDA, NORTHERN GRAMPIANS SHIRE

Municipality

NORTHERN GRAMPIANS SHIRE

Level of significance

Recommended for Heritage Overlay

Heritage Listing

Northern Grampians Shire

Statement of Significance

Last updated on - July 16, 2004

The former General Store, Hemley's Cordial Factory and residence, 6001 Donald-Stawell Road, Callawadda, have significance as a legacy of Hemley's general storey operations from c.1913 and the renowned Cordial industry established by A.E. Hemley in 1934. The buildings are of architectural interest in depicting the cordial factory process and family business.

The former General Store, Hemley's Cordial Factory and residence at Callawadda are **historically** significant at a **LOCAL** level. They are associated with the establishment of Mrs. Hemley's General Store in c.1913, and particularly with A.E. Hemley's Cordial Factory by 1934.

Overall, the former General Store, Hemley's Cordial Factory and residence at Callawadda are of **LOCAL** significance.

Heritage Northern Grampians - Shire of Northern Grampians - Stage 2 Heritage Study, Wendy

Study/Consultant Jacobs, Vicki Johnson, David Rowe, Phil Taylor, 2004;

Hermes Number 104796

Property Number

Physical Description 1

The former General Store and Hemley's Cordial Factory, 6001 Donald-Stawell Road, Callawadda, consists of at least five single storey, gabled buildings with galvanised corrugated iron roofs, together with an adjacent residence. The former General Store has a cream brick main facade with a stepped parapet. This facade appears to have been introduced in the c.1940s-1950s. The side walls have strapped sheet cladding and high small timber framed windows. The neighbouring factory buildings are rudimentary in design and construction, having galvanised corrugated iron walls and simple window and door openings.

The adjacent, asymmetrical, single storey, cement sheet, interwar Bungalow styled residence is characterised by a hipped roof form, together with a gable and altered/introduced flat roofed verandah that project towards the road. These roof forms are clad in grey painted galvanised corrugated iron. An introduced galvanised flue adorns the roofline. Broad overhangs with exposed timber rafters are features of the eaves.

Other early features of the design include the timber framed double hung windows, and the round verandah columns. The brick piers may have been introduced, following the original design.

There appear to be have been alterations and additions carried out at the rear.

This place/object may be included in the Victorian Heritage Register pursuant to the Heritage Act 2017. Check the Victorian Heritage Database, selecting 'Heritage Victoria' as the place source.

For further details about Heritage Overlay places, contact the relevant local council or go to Planning Schemes Online http://planningschemes.dpcd.vic.gov.au/